

EAST AFR. PROT.

No. 33231

33231

Oct 16 1905

N.  
out 1905

(Subject.)

1905

Report

previous Paper.

2524

## Report of Land Commission

Sugnells has observations on  
 if any of appointments recommended by  
 the Board are approved as he often  
refuses to be seen by

Mr. Read

(Minutes)

Submit a typed invitation  
 this paper. Sugnells to consider  
 with Col. Smith's report on the  
 Survey: the survey is the first  
 control of a surveying land plan  
 sketch generally the boundaries  
 which will be their site - town  
 Not able to do this effectively  
 a work force to make some  
 to a lead from a lead junction  
 the that site before in the way  
 and assistance. Their actual  
 reports are far much more  
 moderate duration.

M.C.P.

No returns.  
 I have very little to add to Nellie  
 with a interesting minute with what Sugnells

PRINTED FOR P. M. M. T.  
 H. L. 158 AUGUST 1905

706

It is impossible to read the report & the evidence attached to it, without seeing that we have a very big job before us, & this if it is to be successfully carried through, will still remain very capable & experienced men in the ~~Commissioner~~<sup>the Commissary General</sup> <sup>of the Army</sup> ~~and~~<sup>& the Adj't Gen'l</sup> <sup>and</sup> ~~the Commissary General~~<sup>the Commissary General</sup> <sup>of the Army</sup> must be helped to do what seems at first sight the right thing to do.

The most urgent matter before us  
is the following -

(1) Survey - We have written to the Trust<sup>2</sup> submitting proposals for putting the matter on paper now, & if they agree, we can introduce the necessary reforms at once.

(2) Appointment of an Assistant Commissioner  
I think that we ought to get Sir Henry  
Ansley at once for the appointment, since  
the sum of a suitable man. The  
funds made for the office at the Estimate (not  
(but not sanctioned by the Trust<sup>2</sup>) were £500  
a year.

(3) Appointment of a Commissioner to look  
into the business of the proposed  
new Board. This is the most important  
appointment & it will be well worth while  
to pay a high salary. If we can get the  
right sort [uncertain] I think that he ~~will~~ be <sup>able to</sup>  
offer a salary of £1,000 per annum.  
increments of £50 to £1,200 per annum,  
according to his work. It will be necessary  
to make up the account of the  
trustees & to be paid by the old trustees.  
In the minutes, in the S. of S. has given  
the reasons in the various parts raised

for it of  
from "dep"

I would suggest that Mr Booth should be  
asked to draft an amended Ord<sup>2</sup>, so that  
the draft should be sent out to the Commissary General  
etc. so that the word "it" should not be  
first inserted before our safety. He can  
come to England & see had an opportunity of  
considering it.

209

I have much very full talk w<sup>t</sup> the  
leading solicitor of the E.A.P., & he allows  
that there will be a great deal of difficulty  
in the Committee Report - not made  
public. as the evidence was given in  
London & there was no formal report or the  
Committee. I do not see any objection whatever  
to publication of the Report, but I think  
that the first night fairly charged should  
be allowed to speak up to name a part of the  
rest of parts. So if the R<sup>2</sup> Committee

H. J. R.

30/Jan

We must certainly endeavour  
to draft by the experience of  
Australia and New Zealand and  
avoid the mistakes committed  
there. I would, however, therefore  
have somebody in a despatch forwarding  
it, of course, so as not to hurt the  
Australian feelings. Mr. Abbott's  
marks on this part of the

question

It is, as the Commission say (page 4 of Report), of the second importance at this stage that the bill stand in the House with a history well thought out beforehand; and this Report although it gives no knowledge of the history of land legislation in other countries, is a very useful piece of work, and the proposals made in it are generally reasonable.

I agree that a Land Board, as proposed by the Commission, should be created and it should contain a Comptroller (as well as one for Agriculture); and that the Comptroller and inspector general now in the Fleet, who is English for Land, should be merged in the "Commission" of the new Board, but whether his best man for the job, since he has also been Land Commissioner, should

settlement in Canada or New Zealand is a matter which requires further discussion.

6th Nov 27

As to the Comptroller for Land, I believe myself inclined to Canada rather than to Australia or New Zealand, though I am not at all sure that an English barrister would not better fill the position -

1040

28/11

I gather that Dr. John Graham has been appointed Comptroller of the New Zealand Land Commission to do the reports of the Land Commission. He is to have the benefit of the services of the former Land Board.

The Captain's point therefore from the fact of State is to appoint a Chairman of the Board. This will have before the selection to be had from time in the country, and according to such persons may be suggested by Sir H. Branson.

At Antelope.

At Dr. M. Commanee's request,  
I have seen Mr. Holderness of the I.O. who  
originally recommended Mr. Paster. He says  
that he suggested Mr. Paster as he thought  
that he was the best man available in the  
country. He also thought that, as Mr. P. was  
an able man & had had some experience  
of administration & land settlement work  
business with irrigation schemes.  
He would have been sufficiently qualified  
for the present off't. It seems probable  
however that Mr. P. will be required  
in India. Mr. Holderness is  
to advise that a regular  
settler officer would be more  
fit for our purpose, but we  
had to get him from  
For the terms offered, he does  
not think that we should get a  
man more than \$35 or so. He  
thinks we shall write  
to them  
and make application to the Treasury &  
ask for the purpose funds  
to be sent to the I.O.?

H. J.R

10/2

Feb. 10.

So proceed.

W.H.O. —  
10/2 — claims

you should not offer  
the passage to & from this  
country on sick-leave, but  
otherwise I can assure you  
the proposed terms of appointment  
of the African Land Compt. If you  
will send him before he gets his  
able from India, offer your terms  
subject to Treasury approval,  
I have not consulted my Chiefs.

Yours sincerely  
John C. Bradburn



214

COLONIAL OFFICE LIBRARY

NUMBER 2277  
COLONIAL OFFICE LIBRARY

AUGUST 14 1907 1906 05

AFRICA PROTECTORATE.

No. 456

PRINTED FOR PARLIAMENT  
H. L. 158 AUGUST 1907

SIR,

With reference to my despatch No. 454 of June 2nd,

forwarding copies of the Report drawn up by the Committee

I appointed to enquire into the land question in the East

Africa Protectorate, I have the honour to submit to you herewith

with my command. I consider that the report, on the whole,  
is carefully thought out and excellently put together,  
embodying as it does the views of the many persons who gave  
evidence before the Commission.

2. There is undoubtedly a strong feeling among the  
natives that the conditions under which they hold land  
in the Protectorate are too rigorous, and the great  
complaint is that they have no ownership of their lands.  
There is much to be said on both sides, and while

would

Principal Secretary of State

for the Colonies.

S

Downing Street,

LONDON.

would bring in capital and increase speculation. The first comers who have perhaps bought land merely as a speculation and have done no work on it, would receive a large profit by selling, and it is doubtful if the purchasers would do any more work than their predecessors.

They might simply regain the possession of the land and wait for an opportunity to sell again at a profit. In the meantime, though money is circulated by this method, the land itself is not developed. As the law stands at present, a man before obtaining a transfer must show that he has done some legitimate work, and if after a certain period no attempt is made to develop the property, the land reverts to Government. A solution to this question may be possibly found in a proposal put forward by Mr. Ainsworth, which is enclosed herewith, namely to levy a tax on all unoccupied or unproductive land whilst allowing free transfer of free-hold property.

Article 9 of the Crown Lands Ordinance seems a very stringent one, and one that ought to be modified so as to extent of returning to the original purchaser on the re-sale of the land the whole or a portion of what he originally

financially paid.

Irrigation laws have not yet been promulgated. They are, however, very necessary and will prevent much litigation in the future.

5. Article 11. I can see no hardship in the terms of this article as permission to renew his lease is never likely to be withheld from a man who has done good work on his property. Some leases are for short periods, but a great many are up to ninety nine years.

6. Article 12. I see no reason to alter this section. That the land leased may not be assigned without the consent of the Commissioner is to enable the Government to keep a check on the plans of men that may come into the country. His requisite consent would never be refused to any desirable tenant.

7. I am of opinion that subsection (d) to Article 14 should be retained, otherwise landholders might be unable to obtain access to their estates at all. Such have already written where one man has tried to block another by refusing to allow a road to run through his property, and it has

been

been necessary for Government to intervene.

9. Sub-section (1), concerning disposals of the land  
Committee were carried out, it would be impossible for a  
person to travel in the Kikuyu district as there is not a  
single property of four thousand acres in it.

9. Article 14. The drainage of the town of Nairobi is  
undertaken by the Municipality and the Water Supply by  
the Railway. I am afraid that the ~~law~~ has not yet come  
to entertain propositions as to water works, etc., in other  
parts of the Protectorate.

10. Article 15. I do not agree with the Committee's  
recommendations with regard to this article. It seems to  
me that the Collector of the district would naturally know  
more of the details of such cases than an outside person  
and is the right person to deal with them.

11. Article 87, ss 4 & 5. A better definition of the term  
"minerals" would be certainly desirable. At any rate, to  
enable a man to use the earth and stones on his own land for  
building purposes, as to whom he turns having to itself the

rover or drawing on the country for stone, timber, etc., required for making roads, bridges or other public works, it is considered that the necessary material might otherwise have to be brought from long distances at enormous expense.

12. With regard to the price of land it is true that the present system of classifying and valuing land is not very satisfactory, though as the rates are extremely low, no hardships are suffered.

13. That no person should possess more than one home-estead if entirely in accordance with my own views. There are few people either at home or here who can satisfactorily occupy a farm of six hundred and forty acres without a

14. I do not see, however, how the need for homesteads in the Kikuyu District can now be reduced except in cases where the land reverts to Government. In such cases it would be an excellent thing to sell the land outright in plots of three hundred and twenty acres. Practically the whole of the Kikuyu district is leased as homesteads,

but there has been no great tendency on the part of the public to apply for them in other parts of the Protectorate.

In the event of applications being received, I think the smaller areas, sold outright, preferable to the larger.

15. As regards the method of payment of homestead selections, I do not advocate that it be spread over a number of years, as this would mean expense to the Government in the way of clerks, collectors, etc. It would be preferable for a Bank to lend the money.

16. Rules 17, 18 and 19. I am rather in favour of the comments on these rules and "Benevolent occupation," as defined, would possibly meet the case. It would be well to <sup>before</sup> divide the rules relating to forest and fencing, as the proposals of the Committee in this respect are worthy of consideration.

17. With regard to the branding of cattle, an Ordinance is being prepared according to the terms of which all cattle must be clearly marked or branded.

18. The monetary qualification which is so strongly objected to seems to be of little use, though it has perhaps kept out some parties. There is no doubt that on several occasions the necessary money has been borrowed

for a few hours to enable people to qualify. This

restriction might well be abolished. A statement

signed by two landowners to the effect that an

applicant is respectable and a fit person to take up

land would doubtless answer the purpose quite as well.

19. Rule 20. I am inclined to concur with the recommenda-

tions of the Committee on this point. If the law were

altered I am sure that the country's resources would be

more readily developed, though certain individuals

would doubtless abuse their power.

20. Whatever decision is taken with regard to the

transfers they ought to be absolutely barred to Indians

or natives in the districts suitable to European

colonization owing to the insanitary habits of Asiatics

and Africans, they are not fit persons to take up land

as neighbours of Europeans. There are enormous tracts

of land in the Protectorate perfectly suitable for

Indians to develop without encroaching on the comparatively

small areas suitable for European settlement. There is

no objection to the small plots and gardens which have

already been leased to Indians and natives in the

highlands, as they are generally far from the European dwellings, and being of small extent, can be easily controlled.

Pl. As regards the question of native reserves, I have not been able to make up my mind from the evidence at my disposal as to which is the better method, large reserves far removed from centres of European population or small reserves scattered up and down the country. The opinions of settlers differ largely on this point and whichever scheme is adopted it will require most careful consideration as to the locality, size, etc. of the proposed reserves. The class of native, whether agricultural or pastoral, would also have to be taken into account.

22. The question of survey is one of supreme importance to this Protectorate, and I am dealing with it in a separate despatch enclosing Colonel Smith's report on the Land and Survey office of this Protectorate. This Report should be read in conjunction with the Land Committee's suggestions and proposals.

23. With regard to townships this matter is already in hand.

land

land having been reserved wherever it seems likely  
township may spring up.

24. I am strongly in favour of more time being allowed  
for the erection of buildings in township lots. At  
present a number of hasty built houses are being run up  
in order to comply with the requirements of the law,  
whereas if more time were granted, a better class of houses  
would be erected. I think the time should be extended  
to five years, not ten as the Committee recommends, other-  
wise the lots would be locked up for too long a period.  
In the event, however, of a ground rent being charged  
on all lots not built on, there would be no objection  
to the time limit being increased to ten years.

25. It would be very desirable to allow the rate payers  
to elect their own members of the township committee  
by vote, but a difficulty arises in connection with the  
coloured vote. As long as Indians and natives pay taxes  
they ought to have a vote for their representatives, but  
the white rate payers wish to monopolize the right of voting  
and I fail to see how this could be countenanced by

Government.

26. Regarding future administration, the first recommendation of the Committee has already been carried out, and the post of Conservator of Forests has been abolished or rather amalgamated with that of the Director of Agriculture. This arrangement is working very satisfactorily, and there now exists no friction between the two departments. The creation of a post of Commissioner of Native Affairs is a growing necessity, and I entirely concur in the recommendations of the Committee. If this appointment is made, I have no doubt in the Protectorate who is fully capable of carrying out the duties.

27. The formation of a Land Board, constituted as suggested, would, I believe, be a boon to the country, as many points that still form the subject of discussion could be dealt with more speedily and with greater satisfaction to the settlers than is at present the case, where documents have to go through so many different departments. The various duties proposed for this Board are worthy of every consideration if this scheme is entertained. The chief argument against the scheme is

that it would cost money, but I think we can safely predict that we should receive returns more expeditiously by adopting it. By arranging for a quicker settlement there would be an introduction of fresh capital, and therefore a rising revenue, which in a very short time would repay any extra expense that may be incurred. The non-official members that may from time to time be appointed to the Land Board, should, I think, receive a specified amount per diem while sitting on the Board. This, would, in my opinion, be preferable to exacting fees for their maintenance. I do not approve of the appointment of permanent members; they should be taken at the occasion requires from the locality in which the application is directed.

22. In submitting last year's estimates I urged the appointment of an Assistant Crown Advocate, and I must again call attention to the absolute necessity for such increase in the staff. It is presumption alone that the Crown Advocate, who has a variety of duties to perform, is unable to cope with his work; and the great delay, so frequently complained of, before applicants for land can obtain the title deeds, is in a large measure due to the pressure of work.

- work in his office. It is a moral impossibility for one officer to conduct all prosecutions, draft ordinances and title deeds, and advise on legal questions of every nature as the Crown Advocate is expected to do at present. I therefore hope that provision will be made in next year's estimates for an Assistant.
28. Wherever I have made no comments on the paragraphs of the Land Committee's report, I am generally in agreement with the recommendations.
29. I think great credit is due to the members of the Board who have patiently and conscientiously endeavoured to ascertain and report on the requirements of the country. Should you be of opinion that changes are required in the ordinance, the services of Judge Barth, who leaves for England very shortly, might be utilized ~~in~~ <sup>in</sup> assisting your law officers to draft an amended ordinance. In this case I have the honour to request that it may be submitted to me for my remarks before publication.
30. If any of the appointments recommended by me meet with your approval, I should be grateful for a

telegraphic report in order to enable me to make the necessary  
provision in the next year's estimates.

I have the honour to be,

Sir,

Your most obedient,

humble servant,

J. Stewart

33231

277

Sub-Commissioner's Office,

Nairobi,

July 21st 1905.

Sir,

I have of late given attention to the question of land development in this country and especially to that in the Kikuyu district. I have now the honour to submit my views for your consideration. At a previous point of the country's development I was personally in favour of restricting dealings in land, my idea being to prevent speculation and no unwise development. I was of opinion at the time that if Government compelled a man to occupy his land under certain rules he would necessarily develop it, or at the end of the period prescribed by the rules, the land, failing development, would revert to the Crown. I am however now convinced that the existing restrictions do not assist in the development we all desire.

As so much actual soil undeveloped a country is of no real value. It is only the produce of the soil which is of use, and I am afraid that our present procedure is tending in many instances to keep this country in an undeveloped state. The present procedure is practically as follows:- A would-be settler arrives in the country, he obtains a homestead of 150 acres and pre-empted a further area of 450 acres. He is obliged to show the Land Officer that he has £ 500, but he is not bound in any way to spend a penny of it on the land. In six months - more or less - he finds he can do very little with the land, but he maintains his option

Deputy Commissioner,

Nairobi.

option over the land for three years, and during all that time the land would, under the present rules, remain undeveloped. This means that one man who is possibly not in a position to develop ten acres "blocks" a square mile. If this man desires to "unload" any of the land he can only, generally speaking, do so by surrendering to the Crown, in preference to which he retains his option for the three years.

Extensive speculation in land in this country and the possible creation of a great land "bubble" may be and undoubtedly is a state of affairs to be avoided, but ordinary dealings in homestead land amongst the public would not, I think, result in very extensive speculation. At any rate it seems bad policy to keep a poor man bound to 160 acres or even to a square mile of land, and to prevent him from selling out either what he does not want or the whole to a man of money who would be able to develop it.

I am now inclined to the opinion that all homesteaders should be able to obtain a freehold title to the land they occupy and be at liberty to sell out if they so desire. Under such an arrangement I feel that many people would take up fifty or one hundred acres and would do something with it. This would really make the country go ahead and we might have under such conditions half a dozen prosperous settlers on a square mile of land in place of one who is, or who will become, lost amidst untouched acres. It will, I feel sure, be to the advantage of the country to sell outright all homestead blocks subject to the following condition:- that the Government shall give two years notice of their intention to put on a tax of half a rupee per acre per annum on all unproductive or unoccupied land. I think that with a land tax on unproductive land we can easily dispense with all the existing conditions and at the same

time do what is necessary to stimulate development by bringing in more money and more workers.

From the economic point of view there can be no doubt but that our present system is not a success.

All sales and transfers of land would require to be registered in accordance with the existing regulations.

I have etc.,

(Sd.) John Ainsworth,

H. M. Sub-Commissioner.

~~Revised~~  
The report of the Land Committee appointed to consider the question of Urban Lands in the East African Protectorates shows an entire ignorance of the history or legislation on these subjects in other new countries such as Australia and New Zealand.

It is admitted, however, officially but not necessarily, that the desire of the first comers to a new territory to get hold of as much land as they can on the easiest terms possible, with the greatest possible facilities for transfer.

It was against this desire that the <sup>and all means</sup> ~~Colonial Office~~ Colonial Office of Territories and Tithing of last century fought in vain. The land grabbers triumphed with results that are regretted, I think, by every one in Australia to-day, except of course the heirs of the successful grabbers.

A few figures, culled mainly from Fiske's "Land Systems of Australia", will illustrate what <sup>has</sup> been done.

The total area of Australia in 1901 was 2.4 million square miles. Of this, though Spain, nearly 200,000 square miles, was still claimed, only 1.2 million square miles were available for cultivation. The area of New South Wales, was in the hands of 62 persons.

Only 2 per cent of the 1.2 millions, said to be per cent of the 2.4 millions, were cultivated.

Instead of settling on the land, the best part of which was alienated to people who made little

or no use of it, settlers were driven to the towns. Between 1851 and 1891, the urban population increased by 200,000 and the rural population was less than 70,000.

Similarly in New Zealand in 1891 it was found that 37 persons held 4 million acres.

In Tasmania figures as to the area of individual estates are not available, but the fact that whereas in 1860 with a population of 57,771, 1,000 acres were under crops, in 1891, with a population of 145,000 the area under crops had only increased to 1,700 acres, ~~had been~~

~~had been~~ In Australia like these, directly traceable to bad system of Crown Lands legislation, which excepted most of the worst features in Australasian life—the slow growth of the population, the rapid growth of the towns, reproducing in the midst of vast vacant lands the worst evils of old civilisations in the way of sweating and overcrowding, the ever increasing debt, and the rise of a Socialist party which is led by the experience of such spates of the rights of property to endeavour to destroy the very institution of private ownership.

In the forties and fifties of last century the Colonial Office endeavoured to check the wholesale alienation of land by raising the upset price of it to 20/- per acre and in the case of pastoral lands only granting leases for limited periods. These were, however, overthrown by the opposition of the colonists who stood out for the 3 F's (Fixed tenure, Fixments and Free Sale of rights) and from the time of the grant of responsible Government the colonies plunged into an orgy of land speculation which resulted in the dissipation

within a generation of the first part of their enormous estates.

Since 1861 the Colonies have been partially endeavouring to retrace their steps, the Governments in many cases buying back at high prices for closer settlement lands which their predecessors had sold to speculators at very low prices. They also endeavoured to prevent the remainder of the Crown lands being wasted in a similar ~~manner~~ by various enactments.

The chief principles of sound land legislation which emerge from a consideration of the Australasian experience are as follows:

1. Land should always be surveyed by the Government before it is offered for sale or lease for a long period to settlers. If this is not done people will appropriate far more land than they pay for, and when a survey is finally made it may prove impossible to eject them or to equitably adjust boundaries. Men will seize on the middle of a water frontage and cut off back lanes from access to roads, water or railways.

1. Land should be classified and the price and conditions of entry varied accordingly.
2. Some regulations as to cultivation of the land granted or desired should be enforced.
3. Grants of land should not be made in absolute freehold as a rule, but that most settlers should be given either as in New Zealand a "lease in perpetuity," i.e., a grant of the land for 99 years at a fixed payment, one per cent on the value of the time of lessing, or as in South Australia a "perpetual lease," i.e., a lease for a specified number of years with the right of renewal in perpetuity, subject to periodical re-appraisements of rent, in proportion to the value of improvements made by the occupier or owner is not taken into consideration.
4. Some regulation should be put in operation, so as to prevent any one person getting too much land into his hands. If the English or man holding more than 2000 acres under one roof is allowed to obtain another, he should be compelled to give up his old one.
5. Some regulation should be put in operation, so as to prevent any one person getting too much land into his hands. If the English or man holding more than 2000 acres under one roof is allowed to obtain another, he should be compelled to give up his old one.

*C. G. T.*  
To whom to the superannuation  
of the Committee

The

The Committee's recommendations are:-

1. That Article 9 of the Crown Lands Ordinance, which provides that if land sold under the Ordinance appears to have been unoccupied for twelve months it should revert to the Crown on six months notice without compensation, should be repealed, and that leases of land should be granted instead - with covenants for development.

*Has no  
tion to make  
able, for con-  
tinue to  
and him to  
by about the  
of a few left*

Although, as I have noted previously a perpetual lease had been found in some of the Australian Colonies a suitable system I doubt whether it would be as attractive as the present arrangement, and I think the Commissioner's proposal that the rule should remain but that some compensation should be granted, should be adopted. I think that the Government should on resuming such unoccupied land pay to the owner of the land one half of the amount originally paid by him to the Government, or, if he acquired it from a third party one half of the average value of land in the locality at the time of resumption.

2. That compensation should be given for improvements effected by the lessee at the termination of his lease - repealing the contrary provision in Crown Lands Regulations Sect 11.

The Commissioner does not agree with this suggestion, but the principle seems to me very reasonable and is admitted in our Agricultural Holdings Act. The matter is however not free from difficulty - one has to guard against the case of a man who may have made some specious improvements, but at the same time

has

has diminished the value of the land by starving it, allowing vermin to increase, &c. Such things are provided against in England by strict covenants in the leases, but they are often evaded and would be still more often evaded in a country like the West African Protectorate with the Government as lessor.

I think however that some such provisions as are embodied in ss. 40 & seq. of the Pastoral Lands Act of South Australia (50 of 1904) might be applied.

3. The Committee object to Art 14 (a) C.L.R. which forbids the assignment of the leases except with the consent of the Commissioner.

*H.S.R.  
7/1/07*

I agree with the Commissioner that this Article should be retained ~~as it is~~ ~~and should be retained~~ ~~of land or a few houses~~.

The form of a perpetual lease in South Australia (5th Schedule to Act —— 530 of 1903) provides that the holder of a perpetual lease shall not "transfer, sublet, encumber or mortgage without the written consent of the Commissioner of Crown Lands".

4. They also object to Article 14 (e) providing that roads made by the lessees may be used "for the public service".

It appears that this is understood to mean that the public may use such roads, and the Commissioner advocates the retention of the provision on the ground that otherwise one landholder will block another from access to his land. This is true, but on the other hand, it is not quite fair that a man should have to keep up a road for his neighbour's convenience.

*Yes R.  
M. H.  
J. J. D.*

On the whole, I think it will be sufficient to insert a provision that the Government may resume land for the purposes of a road through any property, paying merely for the value of the land taken, and without any obligation to construct the road. This will meet the case of such people as the Commissioner speaks of - while the maintenance of the road will be left to the people who use it until the government chooses to take it over.

5. The Committee object to C.L.R. 14 (a) which provides that landholders shall permit travellers and their animals to encamp on uncultivated land and allow access to water. They say, I understand them, that in cases of holdings under 4,000 acres the outspan should be marked out and travellers be compelled to use that particular place. This seems reasonable and the Commissioner, who takes exception to it, appears to have misunderstood what the Committee meant.

*Yes R.  
J. J. D.*

I think that if East Africa is to be a great cattle and stock country some provision will be needed similar to s. 94 of South Australia Act 423 of 1904, providing for travelling stock roads on pastoral land and feeding thereon at fixed cost per head.

6. They object to C.L.R. 15 (a) which compels the lessee of a building lease to provide reasonable drainage and water supply.

*Yes R.  
M. H.  
J. J. D.*

I agree with the Commissioner that this is right enough - it does not mean that the lessee must construct waterworks or sewage farms, but that if and where there is a drainage and water system he must connect with the main sewer and the watermain: and where

there

there is not he must sink a well and provide a dumb well.

7. They object to 16 (b) and (c) which provide that a lessee shall not interfere with native settlements and villages and shall refer disputes with natives to the Collector. This provision must clearly be maintained, as the Commissioner says.

8. The Committee object to the provisions of Articles 27 and 28 empowering the Government to take stone or other materials from uncultivated land for public purposes without compensation, and also to the uncertainty whether Article 3 does not, in reserving minerals to the Crown, forbid an owner to use building stone or earth on his own land.

I think that minerals should be defined as ~~not~~ including stones or earth ordinarily used for building or roads (e.g. South Australia Act 550 of 1903 s.10) - but at the same time I agree with the Commissioner that the power of the Government to take stone or earth for such purposes without compensation should be retained except where the owner has actually opened and is operating a quarry.

9. The Committee recommend the appointment of a Land Board to classify land; and that it should consist of a small number of persons with the requisite technical knowledge.

In this I quite concur and I think that if possible we should obtain one member of the Board each from Australia or New Zealand.

(See also par. 29 of this Minute).

*to all P  
for T or  
to my  
book  
P.Y.R  
and have  
Australia &  
New Zealand  
INFO*

WPA

With regard to classification see pp. 68, 69,  
70 of the Report (Mr Ainsworth's memo). A complete  
classification is only possible after a cadastral  
but some rough classification -  
survey - into Tropical, Sub-tropical, and Temperate, with  
sub-divisions under each head according to the rain-  
fall, and the distance from the railway or a port,  
should be feasible.

10. The Committee recommend that the size of a  
"homestead" should be reduced from 480 acres (i.e. 120  
with a right of pre-emption of 480) to 320 and that no  
person should hold more than one homestead though a  
man's wife and children over 16 might have one. I  
understand the Commissioner to concur in this and I  
agree. The size in Canada is 160 acres.

11. The Committee do not recommend any change in  
the price or method of payment for homesteads which at  
present is 2 rupees per acre which may be spread over  
sixteen years.

The Commissioner however objects to the con-  
tinuance of the system under which the payment may be  
spread over a number of years - on account of the ex-  
pense of accounting. I think however that the option  
to pay in this way should be retained as a man wants  
all his capital in the early years of the occupation  
for stocking and developing his farm.

12. The Committee recommend compensation for im-  
provements on the furniture of a homestead and in this  
I agree - see (2) above.

13. The Committee ~~and~~ the Commissioner agrees in recommending that in place of the specific requirements as to cultivating a definite amount of land and building a house, at present required by Rules 17, 18, 19 from homestead selector, there should be substituted the spending of a defined sum each year on the "beneficial occupation" of the land.

I think that such a change, though desirable, would add a good deal to the labours of the Land Board.

I should be inclined to waive the provision as to the house, and while retaining the provision that a man must cultivate one-tenth of the land in each of the first three years add a proviso that permanent improvements of equivalent value will be accepted instead of cultivation.

14. The Committee object to the rule by which a man is obliged to keep 10 per cent of his holding in forest. I agree that this rule is absurd. Forest reserves are necessary, but not keeping patches of wood all over the country at the expense of the landowners. I think that forest should not be as a rule included in homestead grants, but that it should be reserved to the Crown for the use of the settlers who should be allowed free a certain quantity of timber.

Where it is unavoidable to include timber in a grant the settler should be allowed to use it as pleases, but he need not then be allowed to have Crown Timber free.

(See the Canadian rules on this subject page 78 of the Yearbook of 1904).

15. As to fencing, it is very usual I think to insist on lands being fenced by express covenant in a lease of Crown lands. See e.g. South Australia. No. 501 of 1890 s. 57 (3). do. No. 830 of 1903 Third Schedule (6).

I cannot but think that the milder compulsion afforded by the present Regulation that a man who has not fenced may not impound his neighbour's cattle may well be retained.

16. Compulsory branding of cattle is, I think, desirable.

17. The rule that a would-be selector must show the Land Officer that he possesses a certain sum can so easily be evaded that it may well be abolished, and a certificate

certificate of fitness signed by two landowners substituted instead.

18. The Committee object to the rule by which a settler may not deal with his interest in the land, except by consent of the Land officer, till he has fully paid for it. This is a very usual rule in Crown Lands' Ordinances in order to prevent the whole country falling into the hands of mortgagees - see, e.g., the definitions of a Perpetual Lease in South Australia Act 530 of 1904. Fifth Schedule.

2 (3) do.

Third Schedule section 8

do.

2nd Schedule section 6.

*Up to*  
It might however be well to allow advances to settlers on the security of their land on terms similar to those sanctioned in Canada, see Emigrants' Information Office Handbook for 1904 pages 69 and 70: the mortgagee has to get rid of the land to a bona fide settler within 2 years of his entering into possession of the land.

19. The question of reserving the Highlands of the country for Europeans or not allowing Asiatics to hold land there except short leases of garden plots, a course which is recommended by the Commissioner and the Committee, is one of some difficulty and delicacy.

Indian traders were established at the coast before any Europeans were there; Indian labour made the railway and Indian soldiers aided in the conquest of the country.

At the same time I think that in view of the large

amount

~~amount of country which will in any case be left open  
to Indians and which is not suitable for European colonization~~  
~~the restriction should be imposed.~~

242

~~WTO~~  
20. The question of whether natives should be made to live entirely in large reserves (like the Maasai) or whether they should be in small reserves interspersed among the European settlements is one of great difficulty on which the Commissioner has not yet made up his mind - and I think it may be deferred for the present.

#### 21. SURVEY

I am strongly of opinion that so far as is possible no land should be granted until it has been surveyed. This is provided for by Colonel Smith in his report (Point 5.5) "A cadastral survey" is recommended "on a scale of 1 in 1000". This should always be prepared in advance of land settlement". The necessity of a thorough survey is fully recognised by the Land Committee pages 17 to 19 of their Report; but they seem to advocate on page 18 a system of selection before survey which, while it may be necessary in the present state of arrears in the Land Department, should not be allowed as a permanent system.

22. The matter of a survey of Nomans appears (page 19) to be specially pressing with a view to the establishment of titles. The Committee recommend that a special Board should be appointed for this purpose and that when the survey is completed there, title by registration should be introduced afterwards in other parts

and the Commissioner for Native Affairs to form the

Board

parts of the Protectorate, as the Survey is completed.

This proposal seems very reasonable.

24. The Committee recommend that survey fees should not be paid in advance but I do not think there is much hardship in this.

25. The recommendations of the Committee on page 21 as to reserving land for future townships is being carried out.

26. The Commissioner agrees with the Committee that a longer time should be allowed for building or building plots in towns, and this seems reasonable if rates are levied on unoccupied land.

27. Locations and passes for natives and Indians in townships are probably desirable. The Commissioner does not touch on this.

28. I agree with the Commissioner that if the Nairobi Council is elected Indians cannot be excluded from voting and the matter had better be left where it is.

29. With regard to the organization of the Land Board proposed I agree that such a body is necessary, but I cannot agree that a Conservator of Forests is unnecessary - indeed the Secretary of State has recently urged the revival of this post in a despatch to the Commissioner. *Despatch 29th Aug 1908 re Land Board and Forests*

Such an officer should accordingly be a 4th with the Commissioner for Land, the Commissioner of Agriculture and the Commissioner for Native Affairs to form the

Board

~~amount of country which will in any case be left open to Indians and which is not suitable for European colonization~~  
the restriction should be imposed.

242

~~WTO~~  
The question of whether natives should be made to live entirely in large reserves (like the Masai) or whether they should be in small reserves interspersed among the European settlements is one of great difficulty on which the Commissioner has not yet made up his mind. And I think it may be deferred for the present.

#### 214 Survey

There is a strong body of opinion that so far as is possible no land should be granted until it has been surveyed. This is provided for by Colonel Smith in his report (Print p.5) "A cadastral survey" is recommended "on a scale of 1 : 10,000. This should always be prepared in advance of land settlement". The necessity of a thorough survey is fully recognised by the Land Committee pages 17 to 19 of their report; but they seem to advocate on page 18 a system of selection before survey which, while it may be necessary in the present state of affairs in the Land Department, should not be allowed as a permanent system.

The matter of a survey of Mombasa appears (page 19) to be specially pressing with a view to the establishment of titles. The committee recommend that a special board should be appointed for this purpose and that when the survey is completed there, title by registration should be introduced afterwards in other parts

*Yes*  
*for*  
parts of the Protectorate, as the Survey is completed.  
This proposal seems very reasonable.

*joined that the  
Survey fees  
should not be paid  
in advance by the  
owner of the land  
but carried  
out at the time  
of survey*  
24. The Committee recommend that survey fees should not be paid in advance but I do not think there is much hardship in this.

*24. 25.* The recommendations of the Committee on page 21 as to reserving land for future townships is being carried out.

*Yes*  
*for*  
26. The Commissioner agrees with the Committee that a longer time should be allowed for building or building plots in towns, and this seems reasonable, if rates are levied on unoccupied land.

*Yes*  
*for*  
27. Locations and passes for natives and Indians in townships are probably desirable. The Commissioner does not touch on this.

*s.h.*  
28. I agree with the Commissioner that if the Nairobi Council is elected Indians cannot be excluded from voting and the matter had better be left where it is.

*Jointly in the  
council, the  
member of a  
body and before  
the 1st C.C.  
Int'l O*  
29. With regard to the organization of the Land Board proposed, I agree that such a body is necessary, but I cannot agree that a Conservator of Forests is unnecessary - indeed the Secretary of State has recently urged the revival of this post in a despatch to the Commissioner. *book 124 pp. 22108 we had  
written on the 30th 1928*

Such an officer should accordingly be a 4th with the Commissioner for Land, the Commissioner of Agriculture and the Commissioner for Native Affairs to form the

Board with unofficial Assessors selected from time to time according to the locality.

So constituted the Board would be very useful and would relieve the Commissioner of much detailed work.

30. The Committee and the Commissioner both recommend the appointment of an assistant to the Crown Advocate to deal with conveyancing etc., and to reside at Nairobi. *If his some capital of money is to be made with the part of funds. Let it be done.*

31. The Survey department is recommended to be kept separate from the Land Board and this seems desirable.

The question of the constitution of the Survey is dealt with in connection with Colonel Smith's report.

32. It is no doubt desirable that the Coast strip (now leased from the Sultan) should be brought under the British flag and the general law of the country - and until this is done the question of title to land must remain in obscurity.

*M. H. A. S.*

33. The Committee (page 4 of Report) & the Commissioner (part 4 of List) agree as follows respecting facilitating a law recognisable on either side of the frontier. There is no doubt that this is a matter of great importance and that frontiers which are recognised and friendly against each other

990.10

Mr R. M. Dace, C.I.E.  
 whose name was suggested  
 by Mr Hollomarpe & the  
 India Office, as "a suitable  
 candidate for the post of  
 President of the Land Board  
 in the East Africa Protect.,  
 called here today.

He was born in 1854  
 entered the Ind. Civil Service  
 in 1872; where he rose to be  
 Asst. Secretary in the Finance  
 Dept. of the Govt. of India 1893-7,  
 and then Compt. & Aud. of  
 Revenue, which post he holds  
 now.

He is on Com. till  
 6 Feb 1906. He is qualified  
 for Indian, and, if not  
 promoted before his Com.  
 is up, is thinking of re-  
 tiring, but has not made  
 up his mind to do so  
 and thinks that he may  
 be promoted. His present  
 post is worth £1000 ann.

Mr. Dace is a Capital

I approached him but I could not say whether the appointment w<sup>d</sup> be offered to him or what terms it w<sup>d</sup> be sanctioned by the Foreign  
Govt. I asked him to give information about his movements to Col. Houghs ledger (where he knows) in order that we might communicate with him if necessary.

### ADDRESSES

If we, or the India Office, want info. about him from officers under whom he has served, there are two now in England: - H. J. D. Riley, C.S.I., now a member of Council at the India Office (he was Secy. in the Finance Dept. when Lt. Dane was Prof. Staff) and Sir James Lyall, G.C.B., who was Lt. Govt. of the Punjab when Lt. Dane was there.

MS. Acc. 22

Clarendon St  
Bullring  
24th Decr 1865 Boston 24<sup>th</sup>

Day in Boston,  
I went up to my  
office the express  
and committee were  
written to you  
and the agenda and  
each agency Regulation  
for the employment of  
officers. A special  
concession of 4 dollars  
less - to horses and

Col R. M. Done, C.I.E.  
whose name was suggested  
by Col Hollomans & the  
Int. Office, as "a suitable  
candidate for the post of  
President of the Land Board  
in the East Africa Protect.,  
called here today.

He was born in 1854  
entered the Ind. Civil Service  
in 1872; where he rose to the  
Asst. Secretary in the Financial  
Dept. of the Govt. in 1895-7,  
and then Compt. N. & S. S. I. &  
Revenue, which post he holds  
now.

He is in Grade 600  
of Ind. 1906. He is much held  
for honour, and, if not  
promoted before his Compt.  
is up, was thinking of re-  
tiring but has no wife  
at his present age to do so  
and thinks that he may  
be promoted. His present  
post is worth £1000.

He will be entitled

I asked at once from the Indian Service his suggestion  
about my proposal  
and to burn his boats,  
I gathered, unless we offered  
him something like £1500  
a year; and he also attached  
importance to getting  
name in his root, as he has  
a son who will then be  
bearing Sandhurst of the is. I  
met Mr. Cook, a widower with  
his son and a married  
daughter.

But, curiously enough,  
he is starting on the 26<sup>th</sup>  
inst. for East Africa to  
that, and ~~Albania~~,  
~~Albania~~ if he could be allowed  
to visit England in April  
he would be willing to take the appropriate  
leave during his leave, if  
he thought this advisable.  
The Govt of India agreed.  
In that case he would  
probably be content with  
£1200 a year.

I explained to him that I  
could not say whether the  
Government would be offered  
to him, or what terms it  
would be sanctioned by the Government  
but I asked him to give  
information about his move-  
ments to Col. Hedges Addas  
(whom he knew) in order  
that we might communicate  
with him if necessary.

Mr. Addas

If we, or the India Office,  
want info about him from  
officers under whom he has  
served, there are two now  
in English: - Lt. J. G. Riley,  
(C.I.), now a member of Council  
at the India Office (he was  
secy. in the Finance Off. when  
Lt. Dane was Dep't Secy) and  
Sir James Lyall, G.C. 92, who  
was S. Col. of the Punjab when  
Lt. Dane was there.

Mr. Set. 22

Clarendon St  
Millbank  
24<sup>th</sup> Decr 05: 25<sup>th</sup>

Dear Mr. Abbott,

I venture to beg  
thank the magistrate  
and committee who  
granted to you &  
the Legation and  
East Africa Regulation  
for the employment of  
officers. A special  
concession of 4 weeks  
leave in the summer and

39 West Street

S<sup>t</sup> Bernards-on-Susan

21<sup>st</sup> Jan't '06

Mr. Autobus

218

I have been too much  
occupied since returning  
in town to write to you  
as I would say but I now do  
give you the informa-  
tion you asked for in respect  
to the loss in the amount of  
my insurance premium.

Should I take employment  
in a country where the Indian rupee is current -  
my pension is Rs 7000/-  
and would be reasonable  
standard in a country  
a good standard I do  
not at the present rate  
 $\frac{1}{4}$  per rupee - If, however,  
I go to a post in East Africa  
where the rupee is legal  
tender, I should receive  
pension in local currency  
or currency drawn in English  
at the current rate of

exchange; over  $\frac{1}{4}$  per rupee -  
I should lose £145.16.8  
but I can only repeat  
what I said to you verbally  
that I would be reasonable  
in that this should be  
brought into account in fixing  
the remuneration if it  
should be offered me.  
In East Africa £19  
is arranged. I wrote to  
you by this mail to  
have written my letter  
as are likely to be re-  
quested there in connection

With the irrigation scheme  
I told you of and have a  
for a reply by cable - •

At the Committee meeting  
Says that my wife I will  
all know as very acceptable  
at my time of life, and  
in a new and unknown  
place country, more especially  
as I already have a few  
and am not extremely  
proud at it.

We have quite decided  
that it would be advo-

my wife to live here  
engaged with over 250  
the girls so that my going  
would soon be separa-  
tive the consequence  
an establishment for her  
use. In the circumstance,  
therefore, it would only be  
the very prudent to accept  
the post, even if it is of  
no use, provided the  
place such as to allow of  
having servants to  
care for our comfort when

I find very little done.  
There is a remarkable  
lack of a system of  
recognition of our  
service which I have  
concluded in fact arises

I have ventured to say  
elsewhere as you were kind  
enough to speak to me  
concerning the subject.  
I shall now wait for  
your answer to see whether  
the Colonial Office are

ever to take up point

251  
Yours truly  
S. C. D. Lester

DRAFT.Telegan  $\rightarrow$ 

A. T. C. 100/105

Sudder

Mashru Nizam.

MINUTE.Read. 17 Jan<sup>st</sup>.

Mr.

Mr. Astrobust.

Mr. Cox.

Mr. Lucas.

Mr. Graham.

Sir M. Ommanney.

The Duke of Marlborough.

Mr. Lyttelton.

Ind.

Highness

17 January.

Please inform

Hastly

Dance impracticable to  
grillageOpen appointment  
apostaon the calendar proposed  
changesSent W.H.  
17/1/103

R.S.

London  
33251

8 A.P.

253

DRAFT.

The Sec. to the  
Treasury

Incl

20 February '05

MINUTE.

Mr. Uliss 12/2

Mr. Head 14

Mr. Antrobus. 16/2

Mr. Cox.

Mr. Lucas.

Mr. Graham.

Sir M. Omanney.

The Duke of Marlborough.

Mr. Lyttelton.

Sir I am directed by  
the Earl of Ulster to  
recommend you, for the  
consideration of the I.C. of  
the Treasury, that  
he considers it advisable  
to appoint an officer  
with the title of

Commissioner for Land  
and Chattels to be appointed under  
the said Board

under the H.M.  
Commission, the work  
of land settlement  
in the E.A.P.

for now

(Signed)  
David Brown 21/2/05

Cape Town 21/2/05

92 U 1849

254

3. The duties of the  
Land Board are to comprise the  
following:—

- (1) The general supervision of all matters concerning the development and settlement of the land.
- (2) The classification of land, and the assessment of all taxes.
- (3) To make provision for the roads, stock and other posts, bridges, drifts, gates, embankments, etc.
- (4) To receive and deal with all applications for land.
- (5) To report to His Majesty's Government upon all applications for land and to provide for compensation in view of the Proclamation.
- (6) To furnish necessary information pertaining thereto to the Survey Department.
- (7) To have power to take evidence on oath and to require that the man with whom landholders carry out the conditions on which they held their land to make representations to His Majesty's Government.
- (8) To decide all matters of dispute relating to land acts or instruments and the Government, and to act as arbitrators between landholders when so requested by either party.
- (9) To keep records of all their proceedings.
- (10) To act with His Majesty's Government in the improvement

approval a scale of fees to be  
in connection with the introduction  
of bills in Parliament, payable to the  
Committee.

4. It has been made known  
to Lord Mayor, by  
the report of the  
Committee, and by  
various suggestions  
from members, that  
there is a most  
system of despatch  
the management of  
the Land Deptt, from  
which it has resulted  
that officers of the  
Deptt, for grants  
of land have to wait  
on an average, two  
months before their  
grants are made out,  
and that in some cases

DRAFT.

MINUTE.

Mr.

Mr.

Mr. Astorius.

Mr. Cox.

Mr. Lucas.

Mr. Graham.

Sir M. Onslow.

The Duke of Marlborough.

Mr. Lyttelton.

There is likely to be a considerable deficiency  
on the estimated returns  
from the sale of land  
in the current year.

5. It does not appear  
~~fully satisfactory~~  
that any ~~new~~ <sup>other</sup> ~~rearrangements~~  
to the existing offices  
of the Land Deptt., who  
have done their work  
not to cope with  
the growing work  
of the office, & that  
what is needed is  
an office of greater  
expansion in dealing  
with the varied problems  
relating to the settlement  
affection on the  
land referred to in the  
foreign quoted from  
the Committee's report,  
who would agency.

# The question

The land question  
in the Provinces  
was recently the subject  
of enquiry by a  
Committee appointed  
of local officials &  
others appointed by  
the late Sir D Stewart,  
and one of their recom-  
mendations was that  
a Land Board should  
be appointed to consist  
of a Comr. for Lands,  
a Comr. for Native Affairs,  
a Comr. for  
Agriculture & Trade,  
and a Comr. for

Native Affairs. These officers numbers  
from the Government 27 officers numbers  
& the Board and would have been  
add to from number two or more before  
add to from number 3. The

3. The duties of the  
Land Board 251  
are to comprise the  
following:-

- (1) To receive representation of all matters concerning the development and settlement of the lands.
- (2) To make classification of land, and the assessment of its values.
- (3) To make provision for the use of roads, paths, and other works, bridges, drifts, &c., &c.
- (4) To take and deal with all applications for land.
- (5) To report to His Majesty's Commissioner on all applications for land and the sale of the Provinces.
- (6) To give such necessary documents relating thereto to the Surveyor department.
- (7) To have power to take measures on behalf to require from his tenants in which landholders carry out the conditions on which they hold land, and to make recommendations to His Majesty's Commissioner.
- (8) To decide all matters of dispute relating to land between landlords and the Government, and to act as arbitrator between landlords who are represented by different party.
- (9) To keep records of all their proceedings.
- (10) To fit His Majesty's Commissioner's approval.

There is likely to be ~~an~~<sup>255</sup> considerable deficiency  
on the estimated return  
from the sale of land  
in the current year.

DRAFT.

MINUTE.

Mr.

Mr.

Mr. Astorius.

Mr. Cox.

Mr. Lucas.

Mr. Graham.

Sir M. Drummond.

The Duke of Marlborough.

Mr. Lyttelton.

5. It does not appear ~~fully upto date~~  
~~that any~~ ~~been~~ ~~Remarks~~  
to the existing offices  
of the Land Deptt. who  
have done their ut-  
most to cope with  
the growing work  
of the office. What  
is needed is  
an office of greater  
expansion in dealing  
with the varied problems  
relating to the settlement  
affection on the  
land referred to in the  
foreign part of the  
Committee's report.  
who would organize

recommend the mark  
of the P.A.P. on eight  
lines.

Such an officer had  
been <sup>suggested</sup> to obtain  
an agreement  
for 8 years from the  
sum, following  
the advice received  
of the Govt. of India  
with a salary of  
£1500 per annum, on  
the report, or the terms  
noted in the enclosed  
memorandum: and he  
would suggest of the  
L.C. of the Treasury would  
communicate at any early  
date their wish to the  
Secretary of the E.A.P.  
for 1908-9.

DRAFT.

B.A.P. No 159

Commr.  
Col. Parker

MINUTE.

Mr. Whe 2/3  
Mr. Rid 2

X Mr. Antrobus. 10

Mr. Cox.

Mr. Lucas.

Mr. Graham.

X Sir M. Ormsby-Gore. 12  
Mr. G. G. G. 15.3  
Sir D. G. 15.3  
John Brown 20.3

PRINTED FOR PARLIAMENT  
H.L. 158 AUGUST 1907

for record

Published on 3253  
away good draft.

7046

X 10.2

24878-457-209 part one of two

Contra  
39231/05

601

256

23 March 08

Sir You had under  
my care the Report  
of the Committee  
appointed by the  
late Sir W. Stewart  
to enquire into questions  
relating to bond  
in the B.A.P. & also  
his copy of the Report  
on 14th of August  
commenting on it

1. Enquiry into  
ability shown in  
the compilation of the

many points I am in  
agreement with Mr.  
of the Committee of  
concessions. Thus I  
fully concur in their  
recommendation  
that a survey of the  
Post office should be  
taken in hand without  
delay; so you are aware,  
it has been made in the  
beginning of next year  
for this ~~and~~<sup>and</sup> and more  
~~surveys~~  
of the offices selected  
will give the work well  
done this coming fall  
start the operation  
the sooner of the present  
month.

There are, however,  
other questions upon  
which I am unable

as at present advised  
to concur in the first  
part of the Committee's <sup>257</sup>  
and, having regard  
to the increase infor-  
mation to the future  
prosperity of the Post-  
office of ~~the~~ <sup>adopting</sup> a right  
policy in question  
relating to land,  
we decided to take  
no further action in  
regard to the first  
parts of ~~the~~ <sup>the</sup> ~~Committee's~~  
finding the report  
of our office ~~for~~ <sup>for</sup> the  
~~and~~ <sup>and</sup> another whom  
is offered to appear  
under the title of  
Comptroller for Land  
and other selection  
I hope to be able to  
answer to you at no  
distant date. U.S.

~~4. I do not think~~  
~~of the plan all together~~  
~~as being satisfactory~~  
~~in the delay in dealing~~  
~~with them just as the~~  
~~meeting of which I~~  
~~suspect ~~should~~~~  
~~be much later~~  
addition to the staff and the offl. of an  
officer of the Survey Dept. will be  
left with the existing  
system of land  
will not be worked at once  
with better results.

5. In these circumstances  
I do not find it necessary  
to express an opinion at  
present on most of  
the proposals of the Com-  
mittee, but there is  
one question of principle  
on which I regret

DRAFT.

MINUTE.

Mr.

Mr.

Mr. Astrobous.

Mr. Cox.

Mr. Isaacs.

Mr. Graham.

Sir M. O'Meara.

The Duke of Marlborough.

Lyttelton.

to find myself opposed  
by at least one  
member with the  
views of the majority  
of the Report. 258

6. The Committee on  
the 4th Report  
for the Transfer of  
the fact that "unfor-  
tunately or by force of  
circumstances only allow-  
ed with the permission  
of the Commd"; and  
on p. 3 they write:-

"All references on  
transfer of properties  
without compensation  
should be abolished  
so far as possible, till  
such time as it can  
be made as secure &  
the terms of settling  
as may be possible,  
bearing due regard  
to the security by

tion of the general  
conditions of govern-  
ment for development:  
Again they repeat  
that up to this time  
no capital has been  
placed for im-  
proving their capital  
in the country on the  
account of the rea-  
sons given by the  
govt. on failure of  
transferring the ownership  
of the latter offered to  
them.

On these passages  
and on the general  
sense of the first part  
of the Report, I would  
observe that, while I  
am as anxious as the  
Committee are, to see  
the carriage of the  
country's cattle  
and the develop-  
ment of its

of the productive forces  
of the country, of the  
small capital,  
consider the evils of  
unrestricted speculation  
in land much more  
severe than the  
Committee appear to  
regard them existing.

8. It is not merely  
the question of the  
inevitable incidents  
which characterize  
the period of inflated  
speculation known as  
land booms; a like  
before he is done so  
also may thought  
before he pushes land  
at artificially enhanced  
prices. If this  
were all, the danger  
as far as it is  
regards the right to  
own, is the Committee

price (42 m acres) on the  
sale of land or for  
example, by getting  
leases only for short  
periods.

" This policy was, however,  
shortly effected by  
an influential section  
of the Clergymen, especially by  
those who occupied

large areas under  
timbering licenses,  
which they wished to  
convert into pastures  
or long leasesold to men.

These persons fought  
for what was known  
as N.P. Sales as the

" New F's ":- Fixed  
Fees, Fixed Rents,  
and Free Sales.

These views eventually  
prevailed in all  
these districts, and  
not, from about

1850 onwards, enormous  
areas of land were  
alienated from the 261  
Crown without any  
adequate return either  
in the way of purchase  
money or in the  
improvement of the  
lands granted.

13. The result was that  
in N.P. Sales in 1891  
42 m Crown acres  
had been alienated  
in pastures, 22 millions  
of which were in the  
hands of only 683  
persons : while only  
2 per cent of the 42  
millions of  $\frac{1}{16}$  of the  
rest of the 22 millions  
were alienated. Land  
soodore figures  
accorded in the  
two colonies.

The effect of these was  
that they are rapidly  
261  
2. P. therefore,

instead of settling on  
the land, the last  
part of which was  
abandoned by people  
who made little or no use  
of it, were drawn to the  
towns, and the progress  
of the country has been  
seriously impeded.

15. Several of the ports  
have long ago been  
founded, but a vicious  
circle of decay,  
between settlement,  
lands which were originally  
designed for agriculture,  
and towns, while New  
Zealand has endeavored  
to check the further progress  
of decay by creating  
but one town holding  
more than 2,000 inhabitants  
~~and in about to~~  
~~undue importance further~~  
~~and obtain a full~~  
great of town lands  
(other than a small grazing for no other

DRAFT.

MINUTE.

Mr.

Mr.

Mr. Astrobous,

Mr. Cox.

Mr. Lucas.

Mr. Graham.

Sir M. Onslowney.

The Duke of Marlborough.

Mr. Lyttelton.

16. While this example  
before me, I fear that  
in the interests of the  
future prosperity of the  
Colombian Republic,  
it would be essential  
to my legislation  
which facilitates the  
holding of land  
in large areas for  
peculiar purposes,  
either by furnishing  
large grants of land  
without adequate  
restrictions for its  
development, or by  
furnishing the holders  
of smaller areas  
to plant with their  
holdings without  
imposing on the holder  
a particular method  
or mode of the  
use of the land.